ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 1, 2014
8:08 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VMEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Charisse MIlett
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 127

"An Act authorizing the conm ssioner of administration to enter
into agreenents with agents to perform for conpensation certain
transactions related to vehicles; relating to the duties of
t hose agents; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HCS SB 127(STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 32

Uging the United States governnent to take decisive and
concrete action to require the release of Mther Pelagia Sayaf,
the orphans she cares for, and Bishops Youhanna |brahim and
Boulos Yazigi; and urging the United States governnent to
condemn violent acts of religious persecution and bring a
peaceful resolution to the conflicts in Syria.

- MOVED CSHIR 32(STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 216( STA)
"An Act adding the Inupiaq, Siberian Yupik, Central Al askan

Yup'ik, Alutiiqg, Unangax, Dena'ina, Deg X nag, Holikachuk,
Koyukon, Upper Kuskokwim  Gach'in, Tanana, Upper Tanana,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2014



Tanacr oss,

Han, Ahtna, Eyak, Tlingit, Haida, and Tsinshian

| anguages as official |anguages of the state.”

- MOVED CSHB 216( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 127

SHORT TI TLE: VEH CLE TRANSACTI ON AGENTS

SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) G ESSEL

01/ 22/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 22/ 14 (S) STA

02/ 13/ 14 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 13/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 13/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 20/ 14 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 20/ 14 (S) Moved SB 127 Qut of Conmittee

02/ 20/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 21/ 14 (S) STA RPT 3DP 1DNP

02/ 21/ 14 (S) DP: DYSON, G ESSEL, COGHI LL

02/ 21/ 14 (S) DNP: W EL ECHOWSKI

02/ 21/ 14 (S) STA RECOMVENDS ADDI TI ONAL FI N REFERRAL
02/ 21/ 14 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER STA

03/ 03/ 14 (S) FIN AT 5:00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 03/ 14 (S) Moved SB 127 Qut of Conmittee

03/ 03/ 14 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 05/ 14 (S) FIN RPT 4DP

03/ 05/ 14 (S) DP: MEYER, FAlI RCLOUGH, BI SHOP, DUNLEAVY
03/ 14/ 14 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 14/ 14 (S) VERSI ON: SB 127

03/ 17/ 14 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 17/ 14 (H STA, FIN

04/ 01/ 14 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HJR 32
SHORT TI TLE: PROTECTI ON OF CHRI STI AN SYRI ANS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SADDLER

02/ 26/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 14 (H) STA
04/ 01/ 14 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 216

SHORT TI TLE: OFFI Cl AL LANGUAGES OF THE STATE

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KREISS-TOWINS, M LLETT, EDGVON,
NAGEAK, HERRON

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2014



01/ 21/ 14 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 10/ 14

01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/21/ 14 (H CRA, STA

02/ 18/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 18/ 14 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 18/ 14 (H M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 19/ 14 (H) CRA RPT 5DP

02/ 19/ 14 (H) DP. FOSTER, HERRON, DRUVMOND, LEDQOUX,
NAGEAK

03/ 27/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 27/ 14 (H Heard & Held

03/ 27/ 14 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 01/ 14 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

FORREST WOOLFE, Staff

Senator Cathy G essel

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the changes nade in the proposed
House comrittee substitute (HCS) for SB 127, Version 28-
LS1263\ C, Strasbaugh, 3/26/14, on behalf of Senator GG essel,
prime sponsor.

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prine sponsor, presented SB 127.

TIM TOTH, Vice President

Al aska Auto Deal ers Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered a background on the current sales
envi ronment of deal erships during the hearing on SB 127.

TROY JARVI S

Al aska Auto Deal ers Associ ati on;

Lithia Auto Deal ers

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SB 127.

MELI SSA CUCULLU, General Manager

Al aska Tags and Titles

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 127.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2014



AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 127.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SB 127.

DUANE BANNOCK
Kenai, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 127.

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prine sponsor, presented HIR 32.

SELI NA EVERSON

Al aska Native Sisterhood (ANS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 216.

XH UNEI LANCE A. TW TCHELL, Professor

Al aska Native Languages

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast (UAS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 216.

PAUL BERG

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 216.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:08:17 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
meeting to order at 8:08 a.m Representatives Keller, |saacson
Gattis, Hughes (via teleconference), Kreiss-Tonkins, and Lynn
were present at the call to order

SB 127- VEH CLE TRANSACTI ON AGENTS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2014



8:08: 51 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was SENATE
BILL NO 127, "An Act authorizing the conm ssioner of
adm nistration to enter into agreenments wth agents to perform
for conpensation <certain transactions related to vehicles;
relating to the duties of those agents; and providing for an
effective date.”

8:09:46 AM

FORREST WOOLFE, Staff, Senator Cathy G essel, Alaska State
Legi slature, stated that the proposed House Committee Substitute
(HCS) for SB 127, Version 28-LS1263\C, Strasbaugh, 3/26/14,
woul d "clean up sonme of the |anguage" in SB 127 by changi ng sone
uses of the word "may" to "shall". He said it would allow the
Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW) "to honor the current
agreenents while the departnent pronmul gates and adopts
regul ations”™ and "to begin providing the 15 percent retained

comm ssions on the effective date of the bill, wthout waiting
for enabling ... regulations.”
8:10: 21 AM

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL, Alaska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor, presented SB 127. She said the proposed |egislation
would continue the support of a strong private/public
partnership in the DW. She related that ten years ago, the
concept of meking the division nore avail able, convenient, and
responsive was nmade a reality. She explained that at that tine,
Advanced Business Partnerships (ABPs) were forned to handle the

followwng for the DW under contract: vehicle titles and
renewal s; registration renewals; duplicate registrations; |ost
license plates; lost tabs; transfers of plates; and driving

record transactions for truck drivers, anong other functions.
She stated that the ABPs are run by car deal erships and private
conpani es | ocated across the state; the locations and hours are
convenient, and the service is pronpt.

SENATOR G ESSEL said the process is also used by the Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&G, which uses ABPs to issue
fishing licenses in convenient |ocations. The difference is
that ADF&G allows the stores that sell fishing licenses to
retain a small fee from the cost of each license, in order to
cover the cost of the personnel selling the |licenses. She said
the DW does not allow its business partners to do that; all of
the costs of conducting business for the DW is incurred by the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2014



APBs. A few of the private businesses charge the consuner a
separate fee in order to cover their costs.

8:12: 47 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL said the concept of having ABPs sell services
for the DW has resulted in a huge shift in the nunber of
custonmers who go to the DW. She directed attention to a graph
included in the conmttee packet, |abeled, "DW Revenue Sources
FY97- FYO7," which she said indicates a rise in the nunber of
people using ABPs and a subsequent decline in the nunber of
peopl e seeking the sanme services from the DW. She said
consuners prefer the nore convenient hours and |ocations
avai |l abl e through the ABPs. Currently, the ABPs are doing nore
than 25 percent of the DW' s work. She stated that the goal of
SB 127 would be to allow the ABPs to retain sone of the fee to
cover their costs, because they have to provide the facilities
and pay for wutilities, printers, office supplies, credit card
systens, conputers, and personnel. She said the transactions
performed for the DW are nore conplex than those perfornmed by
vendors selling fishing |icenses for ADF&G which neans it costs
nor e.

8:14:11 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL said wunder SB 127, the ABPs providing DW
services would be allowed to keep 15 percent of the fee, and the
rest of the fees would be passed on to the DW. She pointed out
that there are 16 communities that charge a |ocal notor vehicle
tax, and the ABPs collect that tax for the |ocal governnents.
She said all that tax noney is sent to the DW, which retains 8
percent of it and sends the rest on to the l|ocal governnents.
She said calculations show that ABPs are doing over 336,000
transactions per year for the DW. She said if the DW covered
the 336,000 transactions, it would have to hire 32 new state
enpl oyees, which neans the |ocal businesses are doing the work
of 32 enpl oyees. Senator G essel pointed to the fiscal note

and she explained that it reflects a cost just under $2 mllion,
which is zeroed out by the just under $2 million it would cost
to hire the 32 enployees, without the cost of hiring the three
supervisors for the 32 enployees included. She said it is
virtually a zero fiscal note.

8:16:19 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL said SB 127 would support the continuation of
conveni ent services, hours, and locations for the public to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2014



access DW services outside of the DW. She stated, "It's a
smal | step toward reducing the size of state governnent.”

8:16:42 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL, in response to Chair Lynn, stated that there
are a total of 48 ABPs: 11 are stand-al one private businesses,
and 37 are autonobile deal ers.

CHAIR LYNN recollected that the last time he purchased a
vehicle, he was given a choice of going to the DW for
regi stration or having the dealer take care of it for him

CHAI R LYNN opened public testinony.

8:18: 07 AM

TIM TOIH, Vice President, Al aska Auto Dealers Association

offered a background on the current sales environnment of
deal er shi ps. He indicated that auto dealers were involved in a

class action lawsuit - regarding wage and overtime - that they
| ost, because the judge followed the letter of the |aw rather
than the spirit of the |aw He relayed that the dealers in
Al aska are paid in the same manner in which the dealers in the
Lower 48 are paid. He said another class action |awsuit has
begun, which will cost the deal erships in expenses.

MR. TOTH said deal erships incur many expenses, including those
for property taxes, utilities, health care, and in responding to
the demands from nmanufacturers to nmaintain a standard in

facilities. He said nore deal erships have been entering the
mar ket, which "splits the pie a little bit thinner." He said it
is getting increasingly difficult to absorb all the costs of
doi ng busi ness. He said he does not know who initiated the

deal ershi ps' involvenent with collecting fees for the DW. He
stated that the 15 percent, which auto dealerships that offer
DW services would stand to get under SB 127, would not cover
all the extra costs, but would "help sonme.” He opined that the
best option for the dealers would be to give the burden back to
the state; however, they have decided they will take on "sone of
that burden" because it provides a convenience to their
cust onmers. He enphasized the inportance of the proposed 15
percent, because sone of the dealers have said they are not
willing to continue the programanynore wi thout it.

8:22: 00 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2014



MR. TOTH, in response to Representative |saacson, said if auto
deal ers decided not to participate in the program any | onger,
then the burden would be shifted back to the state as it was in
the past. In response to a follow up question, he reviewed that
years ago, the application for title and registration would be
printed out at the dealership, and at the end of business, a
courier would bring those applications to the DW, which had a
speci al section that woul d accept them

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON observed that the DW-related service
offered by the car deal erships was convenient for the custoner,
and the proposed legislation would allow the continuation of
t hat benefit, to which consuners have becone accustoned.

MR. TOTH confirmed that Representative |saacson was correct. He
reiterated that the proposed 15 percent would not cover all the
costs the dealers incur for offering these services, but dealers
are willing to make up for the rest of it to provide the
conveni ence to their custoners.

8:24:36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS asked if the dealers have the option to
say they do not want to offer the DW servi ces.

8:25:04 AM

MR. TOTH said he does not know. He said npbst dealers he knows
have DW cl erks; however, he does not know whether that resulted
froma state nandate.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S asked the prinme sponsor if she knew the
answer. She said she is pro-private business and is willing to
pay extra to have a service available that will allow her not to
have to stand in line for a service; however, she would not want
a car dealership to be forced to offer the service.

8:26:23 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL ventured that offering the service is optiona
for car dealers, based on the information that there are 37 auto
dealers that provide the service currently, and there are nore
than 37 dealers in state.

8:26:49 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2014



MR. TOTH clarified that the auto dealers do not charge extra to
the custoner for the DW services they provide. In response to
Representative Gattis, he surm sed that the dealers could charge
an extra fee; however, he would be fearful that doing so nay
result in litigation

8:28: 08 AM

TROY JARVIS, Alaska Auto Dealers Association; Lithia Auto
Deal ers, stated that he was born and raised in Al aska and has
been in the auto business for over 35 years; therefore, he knows
what it was |ike before the dealers offered the DW services and
the effects of doing so now He said the [participating]
deal ershi ps have been offering the services for free for 10
years, and during that tinme, their expenses have risen and
mar gi ns have shrunk. He echoed M. Toth's statement that the 15
percent that would be offered the dealers under SB 127 would

only cover a portion of those expenses. He indicated that the
deal erships are still wlling to bear the renaining expense,
because they feel "it's a good value for the state" and is part

of good custoner service both for car dealership customers and
DW cust oners.

MR. JARVIS asked if anyone recollected the hours of waiting in
line at the DW ten or nore years ago. He opined that it was a
nightmare to go to the DW back then. He said the deal erships
need the support of the state, and without it would consider
giving the burden back to the state. He echoed the joint
sponsor's remarks about the 32 people that the DW would have to
hire and the associated expense of doing so, and he added that
that expense would only increase in the future. Further, he
suggested that the hiring of that many people would take tineg,
during which the wait tinme at the DW would return to how it was
in the past. He characterized [the 15 percent offered under SB
127] as a "fair conprom se for everybody."

MR. JARVIS, in response to the previous conments about charging
custoners at the deal erships extra to provide the DW services,
said he would not want to do that, because the public already
has the perception of car dealers as nmaking profits, so charging
for the service would not be good for custoner relations. He
indicated that the deal erships would nost |ikely choose to hand
the service back to the state before it would consider charging
its custoners for it.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that it is okay to make a profit, because
that is what businesses are supposed to do.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 1, 2014



8:32:17 AM

MELI SSA CUCULLU, General Manager, Al aska Tags and Titles, echoed
the prine sponsor's testinony that the private sector provides
the staff, facilities, technology, and office supplies to
process transactions for the DW. She said the transactions
create mllions of dollars for the State of Al aska. She said
the proposed legislation would allow the businesses to hire
addi tional enployees, open new facilities, operate extended
hours, and create nore options for Alaska residents, while
hel ping the businesses offset the incurred credit card fees.
She said SB 127 is about fairness and is a w nning answer for
the state, the private businesses, and the public.

8:33:21 AM

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
(ATA), said ATA is a statewde association representing the
interest of its nearly 200 nenber conpanies from across the
state. The association is also a business partner with the DW.
He stated support of SB 127. He relayed that ATA was approached
[by the DW] in late Decenber, 2006, to find out if ATA was

interested in becom ng a business partner. He said ATA thought
that the partnership could benefit its trucking nenbers to
facilitate the handling of its nenbers' DW transactions. He
said not only ATA nenbers, but also the general public that
wal ks into its offices has benefited. M. Thonpson said about
hal f of ATA's customers are comrercial vehicle operators, while
the other half are walk-in personal vehicle operators. He
stated that the association nenber conpanies enjoy pronpt
service, and "nenbers pay a lower fee for our DW services." He

said ATA's walk-in custoners are a cross section of the
Anchor age popul ation, and they receive service from ATA that is
"generally pronpt, friendly, supportive, and helpful.” He said
ATA' s customers appreciate the extra effort the association puts
into the transactions "to make the DW experience a little nore
user friendly."

MR. THOWPSON said ATA feels that asking the DW to pay a nodest
15 percent conmmi ssion is a value for the work for which business
partners [currently] receive no conpensation. He clarified,
"Every workday since 2006, we've processed transactions for the
State of Alaska with no conpensation, other than the nom nal
service fee that we charge our custoners."” He said the DW
provi des sone supplies, including title and registration forns,
tags for the license plates, and the |icense plates thenselves;

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 1, 2014



however, it has been the business responsibility of the ATA to
provi de and pay for the follow ng: personnel, reception space,
secure office space, dedicated conputer systens, technical
support, copiers, paper, postage, and credit card fees.

MR. THOWPSON said ATA s business has grown over the years, and
conpensati on becanme an issue when the association realized that
nore incone was needed to finance its grow h. He said ATA has
had to borrow noney to nmake the paynent schedules to the DW,
and he offered his understanding that ATA has not mssed a
settl enent deadline since 2006. He reported that in 2013, ATA
processed nore than 11,000 transactions for the DW and
generated revenue of nore than $1.6 mllion in fees and | ocal
taxes, which neans that ATA is not only a revenue generator for
the State of Alaska, but is also a tax collector for |ocal
gover nnent s. He said, "Qur calculations indicate that of the
$1.6 mllion, we generated a total of nore than $1.1 mllion in
fee revenue for DW."

8:36: 37 AM

MR. THOWPSON paraphrased the page in the commttee packet from
the prime sponsor |abeled, "SB 127 Vehicle Transaction Agents
Expl anati on of Changes,” which read as follows [original

punctuati on provided]:

The change between version C and version A of SB 127
is sinply to allow the DW to honor the current
agreenents during the tine it takes for the departnent
to pronulgate and adopt regulations covering the
agreenent prerequisites and provisions set out in this

statute.

It wll allow the departnent to begin providing the
15% retai ned conm ssions to the Business Partners on
the effective date of the bill wthout waiting for

enabl i ng regul ati ons.

This language is clear in that all proceeds, with the
exception of rmunicipal taxes or other fees, are
eligible for the 15% retai ned comm ssi ons.

MR. THOWSON added that the changes would also provide a 15
percent retained comm ssion rather than a sliding scale. He
i ndi cated that ATA believes the business partners are providing
val uabl e service, w thout increasing operating costs. Furt her,
he said ATA believes that the DW s business partners should be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2014



conpensated for the service they provide for the state. He

said, "It boils down to sharing the revenue with the partner
that generates the revenue." He urged the commttee to support
SB 127.

8. 37:58 AM

AMY ERICKSON, Director, D vision of Mdtor Vehicles, Departnent
of Admnistration, confirmed that the DW has been partnering
wi th businesses to conduct title and registration transactions

since "the 2000s." She said the partnerships conprise DW
services storefronts, car and snow machi ne deal erships, credit
uni ons, and banks. She said the DW provides its business
partners with all the necessary supplies to conduct title and
registration transactions, including |license plates, nonth and
year tabs, fornms, commercial, non-commercial, and notorcycle
driver manuals, as well as handicap placards - all free of
char ge. The DW further provides free training to process

transactions, as well as free access to the DW database. She
said the business partners charge fees for their services that
are not regul ated by the DW.

M5. ERICKSON relayed that while the business partners make up
approximately 26 percent of the DW s revenues, the businesses

do not function autononously; the DW still touches each
transaction conducted by a business partner. In fact, she
not ed, each DW transaction has three separate conponents, which
must be conpleted before it's closed out: The first conponent
is the initial transaction where fees are collected; the second
is the auditing to verify the receipts of all information and

that the forns have been filled out correctly; and the third is
the reconciliation to verify that all [fees] were received and

put into the correct fee code. She said business partners
conduct about 30 percent of the transaction, whereas the DW
conducts about the other 70 percent. She said the DW has a

staff of seven people dedicated to support the everyday
operations of the business partners; it serves as the "de facto
hel p desk,” spending hours proofing and correcting docunents.
Wen errors have been made, the DW wuses its resources to
resolve them She stated that the DW is shifting into using
nore on-line transactions. Currently, approximtely 48 percent
of all its vehicle transactions are conducted on line, and the
DW is working on legislation to provide even nore services on
l'ine.

8:40: 09 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2014



DUANE BANNOCK stated that he was a chanpion of the business
partnership programin his former career as a state bureaucrat,
and remains so in his current "financial affiliation with a
small used car operation.” He said, "W use a business
partnership exclusively to perform our custoners' title and
registration work - not putting that on the burden of the |oca

DW office.”" He indicated that the major purpose behind the ABP
expansion was to offer, as a courtesy, tine-saving convenience
to Al aska residents who nust go to a DW office; it was designed
as a tine-saving effect, not a cost-saving effect. He referred
to the past testinony relating the long wait tinmes at the DW in
the past, and submitted that ABPs are the nunber one reason
those wait tines have decreased.

8:42: 00 AM

MR. BANNOCK cited the first part of AS 28.10.421(2), which read
as follows:

(2) an additional fee of $10 shall be added to
the registration fee set out in this section for
regi stration not conducted by mail or not conducted at
an enissions inspection station or contract office
of fering vehicle registration services;

MR. BANNOCK concluded, "For the State of Alaska or for any
| egislator to sonmehow criticize the surcharge, in ny hunble
opinion, sir, is the proverbial pot calling the kettle bl ack."

CHAI R LYNN recogni zed M. Bannock's service [as forner director]
of the DW.

8:43: 01 AM
CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.
8:43: 08 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL summarized that SB 127 was not just about
conveni ence, but was al so about fairness, because the ABPs have
been doing work for the state for free. She nentioned a press
rel ease from another commttee, and she read as foll ows: "The
Division of Mdtor Vehicles director testified that they brought
in $48 mllion surplus ..., from DW, in fiscal year 2013, from
regi stration fees." She opined that $2 of that actually bel ongs
to the ABPs.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 1, 2014



8:44:02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt the proposed House
Commttee Substitute (HCS) for SB 127, Version 28-LS1263\C,
Strasbaugh, 3/26/14, as a work draft. There being no objection
Version C was before the commttee.

8:44:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report the proposed House
conmttee substitute (HCS) for SB 127, Version 28-LS1263\C,
St rasbaugh, 3/ 26/ 14, out of comrittee wth i ndi vi dual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, HCS SB 127(STA) was reported out of the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

8:44: 40 AM
The conmttee took an at-ease from8:45 a.m to 8:46 a.m

HIR 32- PROTECTI ON OF CHRI STI AN _SYRI ANS

8:46: 28 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 32, Uging the United States governnment to
take decisive and concrete action to require the release of
Mot her Pel agia Sayaf, the orphans she cares for, and Bishops
Youhanna | brahi m and Boul os Yazigi; and urging the United States
government to condemm violent acts of religious persecution and
bring a peaceful resolution to the conflicts in Syria.

8:46: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HIR 32, Version 28-LS1532\N, Bull ock
3/21/ 14, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version N
was before the conmttee.

8:47: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER, Al aska State Legislature, as
sponsor, presented HIR 32. He said Al askans historically have
had a willingness to "live and let live," respecting the rights
of people to live and behave as their consciences dictate and
"tolerate those of other ethnic, cultural, and religious
backgr ounds. " Further, he said many Al askans have a strong

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 1, 2014



connection to the Holy Land, conprising Israel, Egypt, Lebanon
and Syri a. He said it is the birthplace of Christianity; the
apostle Paul had his conversion in Syria on the road to
Danmascus. He stated, "That's why Al askans care about this area,
and that's the reason for this resolution.” He said
constituents of his that work at the St. John's Othodox Church,
in Eagle River, Al aska, brought the issue to his attention out
of concern for their fellow Christians in Syria. He said Syria
has been involved in civil war since 2011, with varying Mislim
sects, Al Qaeda factions, Jihadi groups, and Christians all
fighting each other. He said, "It's a nmess; | couldn't
explain it if I tried.™

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER opined that what is inportant is that
during the civil war, Christians and Christian churches appear
to have been the target of systematic attacks, during which
i nnocent wonen and children have been nurdered, Christians have
been ki dnapped, nurdered, or forced to convert under pain of
death, and Christian churches are being "burned, desecrated, and

destroyed. " He relayed that Christian Syrians nmake up
approximately 8 percent of the 22 mllion people in Syria, but
make up nearly 25 percent of the 2 mllion refugees of the civil
war and unrest. He said, "They're not safe no matter what side

t hey support, and many fear for their lives."

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said two bishops, Youhanna |brahim and
Boul os Yazigi, were kidnapped in Al eppo, Syria; Mther Pelagia
Sayaf and dozens of orphaned children in her care were ki dnapped
from the Mnastery of Saint Thecla in Mal oul a. He said Mot her
Sayaf and the orphans were released after three nonths of
captivity; however, the bishops and others remain in captivity,
and the destruction of churches continues.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER relayed that it has been said that all
that is required for evil to triunph is for good nen and wonen
to do not hing. He said Alaskans could raise their collective
voi ces against the crinmes in Syria. The proposed |egislation
would call on the United States "to exercise our noral authority
and its diplomatic influence,” in an effort to seek an end to
the atrocities occurring in Syria against people of faith and
t heir houses of worship.

8:49:51 AM

CHAIR LYNN said situations l|like the one in Syria mnmake him
appreciate the freedom of religion in the US. He said he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 1, 2014



t hi nks people sonetinmes take that for granted, but should never
do so.

8:50:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON t hanked the sponsor for bringing forward
HIR 32. He remarked that it is one thing to have verbal
assault, but quite another to have deadly assault. He said,
"This is happening throughout the world, and this draws
attention.” He indicated that the proposed joint resolution is

a fitting step in considering human rights, and he expressed his
hope that it would be a resounding nessage passed through [the
U.S. Senate and the House of Representatives.]

8:50: 52 AM

CHAI R LYNN ascertained that there was no one else who wi shed to
testify.

8:51: 05 AM
The conmittee took a brief at-ease.
8:51: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report the proposed comittee
substitute for HIR 32, Version 28-LS1532\N, Bullock, 3/21/14,
out of conmmttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHIR
32(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee.

8:51:47 AM
The conmmttee took an at-ease from8:52 a.m to 8:54 a.m

HB 216- OFFI Cl AL LANGUAGES OF THE STATE

8:54: 31 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 216, "An Act adding the Inupiaq, Siberian Yupik,
Central Al askan Yup'ik, Autiiqg, Unangax, Dena'ina, Deg X nag,
Hol i kachuk, Koyukon, Upper Kuskokwim Gwich'in, Tanana, Upper
Tanana, Tanacr oss, Han, Ahtna, Eyak, Tlingit, Hai da, and
Tsinmshi an | anguages as official |anguages of the state.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 1, 2014



[An objection to the notion to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
| abel ed 28-LS0905\U. 1, Martin, 3/14/14, was left pending from
the 3/27/14 House State Affairs Standing Conm ttee neeting.]

8: 55: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER withdrew his notion to adopt Conceptua
Amendnent 1.

8:55:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 216, Version 28-LS0905\P, Martin,
3/31/14, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version P
was before the conmittee.

8:55: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he and [Representative Kreiss-
Tonkins], a joint prine sponsor, wrked on the |anguage for
Version P to ensure that under the proposed |egislation, the
state would not be required to print out official docunents in

all the languages of Al aska. He explained that that had been
the intent, but since intent |anguage does not "travel with the
bill," language clarifying that intent was worked into HB 216.

He enphasized that Version P would not restrict municipalities
or the state from conducting bilingual neetings, but it also
would not require all 21 |anguages to be spoken at the sane
nmeeti ng.

8:57:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS thanked commttee nenbers for
their cooperation and corroboration.

8:57:35 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked nenbers of audience to stand up if they
supported HB 216, and then he offered his understanding that "it
| ooks fairly unani nous."

8:.58: 37 AM
SELINA EVERSON, Al aska Native Sisterhood (ANS), opened her
remarks with a few words in Tlingit. She spoke about the inpact

of being denied the right to speak ones Native tongue. She said
there is a 90-year-old man in Angoon who breaks down crying when

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 1, 2014



he recollects being forbidden to speak his |anguage. She said
her brothers were forbidden to speak their |anguage on the
Shel don Jackson School grounds, but they would "junp up in the
air to say sone words in our |anguage." She stated that she
does not want anyone to forbid Native Al askans to speak their
| anguage, because "it is our very being; it's our culture."” She
said there is respect anong the speakers of Native |anguages,
including Tlingit, Haida, and Tsinshian. Ms. Everson stated
that it would be an honor to be recognized for the culture and
| anguage that is the heart and soul of Native Al askans. She
t hanked the committee in Tlingit. In response to Chair Lynn,
she noted that ANS would turn 100 in 2015; the Alaska Native
Br ot herhood (ANB) had celebrated its one-hundredth anniversary
in 2012.

9: 00: 53 AM

XH UNEI LANCE A. TWTCHELL, Professor, Al aska Native Languages,
testified in support of HB 216. He said he is in search of
equal rights in ternms of [|anguage recognition. He said he is
speaking not only on his own behalf but for "every person in
this room and elsewhere who have asked ne to speak for them
t oday. " He said, "I wll speak in the [|anguage of our
grandparents, and | say 'our grandparents' because you are here
with me on this land where this wonderful Tlingit Language has
been spoken for about 9,000 years longer than the English
Language has been in existence." He explained that he did not
say that to establish a hierarchy. He said diversity is not
about who is best, but is "appreciating the beauty of all things
wi thout having to conpare it to yourself; wthout having it be
yoursel f."

9:01: 57 AM
MR. TW TCHELL spoke in Tlingit.
9:02:41 AM

MR. TWTCHELL continued his testinony in English, as follows:

Sel f-respecting people, please listen carefully. Qur
| anguage is our |ife breath; it is the last thing.
Through our |anguage we are still holding each other's
hands - yesterday, today, tonorrow. Because of this,
from ny little grandchildren | am speaking to you.
But it is not nme that you hear. No, you hear the

voices of mny grandparents; you hear ny magnificent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 1, 2014



9

03

uncl es. They have conme here - yes. W are dying;

: 20 AM

right before your eyes our |anguages are dying. Hel p
us.

Soneone has taken all the fish out of the sea. They
are on the beaches gasping for air. | hear soneone
say, "How did this happen? Ch, no!" Soneone el se
says, "Let's form a commttee to talk about our
opti ons. Let's preserve them where they are in this
condition.” Yet another suggests a statew de holiday
for the dying fish; a resolution of support. If you
could speak their |anguages, you would hear how they
are screamng. It would tear you apart - if you could

hear them But listening is not what it used to be.

Now let ne tell you this: These fish did not decide
to get out of the ocean; they did not outgrow their
need for it - no. They were tortured as children for
speaking their |anguages - tortured. If you think
this type of thing happened [a] long time ago, then
you should know that it happened to people in this
very room - such suffering. |If you don't know what to
do, then I'Il tell you. You put them back in the sea.
You get as many people together as you can, and work
toget her very quickly to undo what has been done. You
fix things. There is no humane counterargunent to
this.

W are here today for our elders, who have suffered
tremendously to keep our |anguages alive. They were
beaten, humliated, and tortured in schools sanctioned
by state and federal governnents and run by churches.
W are here for our parents. Many of them lived a
l[ife without their |anguages and feel l|eft out, alone,
i sol ated, |ost. W are here for our conbat veterans
who shed blood for this country and state. There were
code talkers in Wrld War 11, who used Alaska Native
| anguages to help win battles and wars. W are here
for your children, who are killing thenselves in
record nunbers. Qur children are killing thensel ves.

This is nore than synbolic; this is historic. History
wll not renenber you for specialized license plates
and parking ticket processes; history wll renenber
you for this nonment right here - what you say and do

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 1,

2014



when we ask you to help us live, to find a brighter
future for our |anguages, cultures, and people. | f
you are worried about racial divisions, because you
choose to recognize us as equals, then you nust
understand this: You cannot have nulticulturalism in
Al aska and nonolingualism at the sanme tine. You | ust
get | anguage death. The greatest way to achieve unity
is to look at your fellow man and say, "You are of
equal val ue."

9: 06: 00 AM

MR. TW TCHELL said HB 261 would rmake Al aska the second state in
the US to officially recognize indigenous |anguages and end
suffering, humliation, and racial superiority. He said Hawai i
is the only one currently reducing |anguage shift, which neans
the state is producing nore Hawaiian speakers than it is |osing.
He stated, "People cannot be sonething other than what they were
born to be, which is coded in their |anguages. These | anguages
root people - whether they are Alaska Native or not - to a
pl ace. This is what unity feels like." He opined that HB 216
would be a step in the right direction by elevating Al aska
Native |anguages at the highest |evel, which would help in the
fight against addiction, depression, suicide, violent crines,
and high school dropout rates, and it would create a better

state by "overcom ng outdated notions that we are inferior.” He
told the commttee to have courage and support the proposed
| egislation through the commttee and on the House fl oor. He
concluded, "W wll share with you the joy of overconmng the
worst of tines." He thanked the commttee in Tlingit and
Engl i sh.

9:07: 25 AM

PAUL BERG noted that he has been a teacher in Al aska since 1977,
but was speaking on behalf of hinself. He said he had been
involved in nmulti-cultural education, including being part of

President George H W Bush's Indian Nations at Ri sk Task Force
approximately 20 years ago. He related that on the prior Friday

he "cane honme from a war." He explained that he gathered with
people to hear a senator announced that Alaska was going to
address a wong. A Vietnam veteran took the mcrophone and

recounted his experience returning to the U S., having people
spit on his uniform and not being able to get a cab driver to
take him to his house. M. Berg said hearing the story brought
him back to his experience in San Francisco, in 1968, standing
in formation with his fellow mlitary conrades, just having

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 1, 2014



arrived home, when people cane and threw garbage on their
uniforms. He said he contained hinself, but the man next to him
sobbed. They were not prepared for such a reception. Returning
to the Senator's words on that Friday, he recounted how the
group was told they were to receive a welconme home certificate
from the State of Al aska. He said at the end of that cerenony
he felt "a spike had been renoved fromthe core of ny soul.” He
said it was an incredible healing, and he thanked the
| egi sl ature for making that happen.

9:09:19 AM

MR. BERG said veterans do not consider that the garbage and spit
was directed at them but at their uniforns. He expl ai ned that
those in the mlitary consider the uniform as "where we had
been, what we had done," and the "friends who didn't come back
wth us." He said in the years he has travel ed through Al aska
especially during his work in the Yukon-Kuskokwim (Y-K) Delta,
he has wi tnessed the sane pain. He said he is 69, and many his
own age have had their |anguage torn away from them through
sanctioned "physical and enotional brutality,” and they have
borne the wounds "like a spike through the soul.” He said that
pain frequently is passed down to their children and
grandchildren. He said, "It's called, 'secondary post-traunmatic
stress.'" He opined that this is an historic nonent for the
| egi sl ature, because it has the opportunity to right "a second
great wong,"” to "restore balance,” and "to begin healing a
great, open, and festering wound." He asked the legislature to
extend the same kindness and healing opportunity that was
extended to him last Friday, by "welcom ng these |anguages and
their speakers hone at |ast."

9:11: 08 AM
CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.
9:11:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWINS, as joint prine sponsor, said he
was conpletely unfamliar with Al aska Native |anguages until he
ran for office. He said through the process of canpaigning, he
got to know a woman in Klawock, whom he described as in her 80s,
"tough as nails," a "beautiful, resilient wonman whose snile has
not aged one year with tine." He said he visits her when he
travels to Kl awock. She is a fluent speaker of Tlingit. He
said although he hopes to speak Tlingit one day, he does not
currently wunderstand it; however, when the woman speaks in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 1, 2014



Tlingit, "you can really see her soul cone alive;, it is the
essence of her being, and it's a beautiful experience." He
characterized the wonman as a cultural treasure of Alaska, as is
Tlingit and the other Native |anguages of Al aska. He said it
has been gratifying to work on HB 216 in an attenpt to honor and
revitalize the | anguages. He thanked the commttee and
participants in the room especially all the elders in Al aska
who are "the culture-bearers of these | anguages.™

9:13: 31 AM

CHAIR LYNN stated that people living in Al aska are Anericans,
Al askans, and brothers and sisters. He stated that |anguage,
beyond bei ng communication, is "our heart and soul.” He said he
could not imagine trying to think wthout having sone kind of
| anguage. He said the proposed legislation would not fix
everything, but he indicated that it could be a step in a |long
j our ney.

9:14: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked that the [joint-prine sponsor]
move the bill with full concurrence.

9:14: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWINS noved to report the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 216, Version 28-LS0905\P,
Martin, 3/ 31/ 14, out of comittee Wi th i ndi vi dual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying zero fiscal note. There
bei ng no objection, CSHB 216(STA) was reported out of the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

9:15: 26 AM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:15
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 1, 2014



